
4 June 2018

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
will meet on

Monday, 11 June 2018
beginning at

7:00 pm
in the

Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF

TO: Councillor Cynthia Garton (Chairman)
Councillor Janice Asman (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Margaret Allingham Councillor Carol Boulton
Councillor Ian Corben Councillor Richard Gomer
Councillor Keith House Councillor Lucy Jurd
Councillor Rupert Kyrle Councillor Derek Pretty
Councillor Bruce Tennent Councillor Adrian Trace

Staff Contacts: Amy Stephens, Democratic Services Officer Tel: 023 8068 8273; 
Email: Amy.stephens@eastleigh.gov.uk

Julia Birt, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 8437; Email: 
julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk

GAETANA WISEMAN
Performance and Governance Manager

_____________________________________________________________________

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website - 
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings

as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and other 
languages, upon request.

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the 
meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed.  To 

register please contact the Democratic Services Officer above.
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, sound recording 

and photography at meetings open to the public, and that Councillors will be 
using tablet devices to access committee papers.

Eastleigh House
Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA

1. Public Participation    

2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 8) 

To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 12 March 2018. 

3. Apologies    

4. Declarations of Interest     

Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

5. Chair's report    

6. Local Area Manager's Report    

7. Financial Management    (Pages 9 - 12)

8. Annual Review 2017/18    (Pages 13 - 22)

9. Wildern Local Nature Reserve    (Pages 23 - 26)

10. Presentation on Planning Guidelines    

11. Planning Application - Sparshatts of Botley Ltd, Broad Oak, Botley    (Pages 27 - 
40) 

Demolition of outbuilding and retention of retaining wall and boundary fence with 
associated alterations to parking arrangement (Retrospective) – (Ref: F/17/82076) 

12. Planning Appeals     

The Legal Services Manager to report:-

(a) that the following appeals have been lodged:-

Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission for tree works at 
Upcross House, West End Road, Southampton. SO30 3BT (Ref: 
T/17/82177).

This was a delegated decision

Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission for the 
conversion of the existing house to create 1no. pair of semi-detached 
dwellings, comprising 1no. 3 bed and 1no. 2 bed, including erection of rear 
single storey extensions and rear two storey extensions and associated car 
parking at 9 Bursledon Road, Hedge End, Southampton, SO30 0BP (Ref: 
F/17/80539). 

This was a delegated decision



Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission for the 
construction of 1no. three bedroom dwelling and single storey rear 
extension to 1 Kinsbourne Way (Ref: F/17/82176).

This was a delegated decision

(b) that the following appeal has been allowed:-

Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission for a two storey 
side extension at Holly Rise, Burnetts Lane, West End (Ref: H/17/80976).

This was a delegated decision.
 

13. Appointments to Outside Bodies    (Pages 41 - 46) 

Hedge End, West End and Botley Youth Partnership
North Whiteley Development Forum
Wildern Community Management Committee
Hedge End, West End and Botley Business Community Group
Boorley Green Working Party 

14. Appointments to (a) Regulatory Panel; and (b) Community Grants Sub-Group     

(a) Regulatory Panel - to deal with Licensing issues not covered by the 
Licensing Act 2003 or Gambling Act 2005.  Previously the Committee has 
nominated all Members to serve as a ‘pool’, from which three Members 
could be called upon as required; and

(b) Community Grants Sub-Group - three representatives required. (2017/18 
representatives Councillors Clarke, Garton, Hall and Pretty) 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Monday, 1 October 2018 at 7:00 pm

in the Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's 
Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news -

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE

Monday, 12 March 2018  (7:00 pm – 7:42 pm)

PRESENT:

Councillor Clarke (Chairman); Councillors Tennent, Allingham, Asman, 
Boulton, Garton, Corben, Hall, House, Kyrle, Morris, Myerscough and 
Pretty

________________________________________

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)

57. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There was no public participation on this occasion.

58. MINUTES

RESOLVED -

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 22 January 2018 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

59. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda.

60. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

The Chairman reported the following:

Mill Gardens Play Area, West End

He was delighted to inform Members that the contractor, Vita Play, had 
commenced work on site. The play area would take approximately four 
weeks to complete, weather permitting, and it was therefore expected that 
this facility would open for the Easter holidays.

Poseidon at the Ageas

One of Poseidon’s youth boxers, 17 year old Taylor Bevan, had won the 
England Boxing Youth Cadet National Championship title, crowning him 
the best boxer in England at his weight and age.  He was currently 
undergoing trials for Wales and it was hoped that Taylor would be selected 
as Poseidon’s first international boxer.

This achievement was even more impressive when it was considered that 
only a small group of Poseidon’s members were competitive boxers.

1

Agenda Item 2



2

Silent Soldier Campaign

The Royal British Legion had launched the Silent Soldier campaign to 
commemorate the 100th anniversary of the First World War. Silent Soldier 
silhouettes were being created as a tribute to those who did not return 
home and to those whose lives were never the same again. The Borough 
Council had indicated that it would fund two silhouettes per local area and 
the Chairman had authorised the payment of another silhouette so that 
Hedge End, West End and Botley were evenly represented. 

Bridle route at Itchen Valley Park

Following the completion of the forestry works, the bridle route had now 
been reopened. As a gesture of goodwill, the Chairman had approved the 
freezing of charges for use of the bridle route for 2018/19 due to the 
closure.

Boorley Green Working Group

The next meeting of this Working Group would take place on Monday 19 
March 2018. Items for consideration would include the draft proposals for 
the local centre at Boorley Park and also ideas for the community 
provision at Boorley Gardens, on the opposite side of Winchester Road. 
Given the proximity of the two sites, it was important that the facilities 
complemented each other.

HEWEB Business Group

A successful meeting of the business group was held on Friday 9 March 
2018. Hosted by Wildern School, the meeting received an update from the 
Borough Council concerning the recent “Shaping Your Community” 
engagement exercise for the Local Plan.

61. LOCAL AREA MANAGER'S REPORT

The Local Area Manager reported the following:

Public Art projects

Following the allocation of further funding for the Berry Theatre public art 
project, a steering group had recently been formed to discuss initial ideas 
about enhancing the pedestrian access to the Theatre. This project would 
include new entrance gates.

The second project was focussed on the West End Heritage Trail with 
agreement that the “Welcome to West End” signage would be replaced 
and a specific piece of art would be located on the old Moorgreen site, 
now “The Pavilions” and this would reflect local history. Both projects 
would be the subject of public consultation.   

2



3

Responses to residents’ and councillors’ requests

Tree works – a tree survey in Havendale and Ferndale was requested by 
the local councillor following concern about the condition of 10 larger trees 
near buildings and the highway. Consequently works had been 
recommended to remove the dead wood and ivy.

Works would also be carried out at Bedford Close and within the woodland 
adjacent to Rectory Court.
 
Ratcliffe Road – following a request from residents, a “no through road” 
traffic sign had been installed to inform motorists that Ratcliffe Road could 
not be used as a short cut.

Mortimer Road Car Park – hatchings had been painted onto the car park 
surface to deter motorists from parking in an area which was used by 
children on their way to school.

Litter bins – the replacement schedules agreed at the last local area 
committee had been completed.

Hatch Farm Residents – a meeting had recently been held to work with 
residents to agree an action plan to address some areas of concern. One 
recommendation was to consider a traffic study for Barnsland and 
adjoining roads. This would be discussed with Committee members as 
part of the annual traffic regulation order priorities.

Assistant Local Area Manager

A temporary position of Assistant Local Area Manager was being recruited 
by the Borough Council to assist the Local Area Managers in the Eastleigh 
and Hedge End, West End and Botley areas. It was envisaged that this 
post would be involved with operational casework and minor projects for a 
period of six months.

Play Improvements at Itchen Valley Country Park

Members had chosen the new play trail equipment and this was due to be 
installed in April. 

The interactive indoor play area was being designed by Andy Frost and 
this would also be installed in April.

62. HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY YOUTH GRANTS

Consideration was given to the report of the Local Area Manager in 
partnership with the Hedge End, West End and Botley Youth Council 
(Agenda item 7) that outlined the youth grants process including the 

3



4

involvement of the Hedge End, West End and Botley Youth Council in the 
decision making process. 

The Chairman proffered the Committee’s thanks to the Youth Council for 
all the hard work that they did. The recommendations contained within the 
report assisted with corporate priorities and the allocation of youth grants 
was part of the Hedge End, West End and Botley Youth Partnership 
development plan.

RESOLVED -  

(1) That the recommendations of the Hedge End, West End and 
Botley (HEWEB) Youth Council for HEWEB youth grants as 
shown in Appendix A to the report be endorsed;

(2) That thanks be extended to members of the Youth Grants 
Panel; and

(3) That £4,000 be allocated towards local youth grants to be 
awarded in 2019.

(NOTE: Donna Love, Leader, and Joshua Buckle, Chair, of Hedge End 
Youth Council, spoke with regards to how the decisions had been made.)

63. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT PROGRAMME PRIORITIES FOR HEDGE 
END, WEST END AND BOTLEY

Consideration was given to the report of the Local Area Manager in 
consultation with the Clerks to Hedge End Town Council, West End Parish 
Council and Botley Parish Council (Agenda item 8). The Community 
Investment Programme priorities for 2016 – 2021 were reviewed and 
agreed by this Committee approximately fifteen months ago. Some of 
these priorities had been achieved and it was therefore timely to update 
these priorities and to include new projects.

RESOLVED – 

That the revised documents outlining the Hedge End, West End and 
Botley Community Investment Programme Priorities for the period 
2018 – 2022, as shown in the Appendices to this report, be approved.

64. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Consideration was given to the report of the Local Area Manager (Agenda 
item 9) that recommended funding to support projects which met identified 
local needs. The projects would also contribute to the achievement of 
corporate priorities.

RESOLVED -   

4

file://ebc01-101/users/Legal%20&amp;%20Democratic%20Services/Democratic%20Services/COMADMIN/HEWEB/MEETINGS/2017-2018/120318/finals/CIP%20PRIORITIES-HEWEBLAC%20120318%20FINAL.doc#Reportofthe
file://ebc01-101/users/Legal%20&amp;%20Democratic%20Services/Democratic%20Services/COMADMIN/HEWEB/MEETINGS/2017-2018/120318/finals/CIP%20PRIORITIES-HEWEBLAC%20120318%20FINAL.doc#Reportofthe
file://ebc01-101/users/Legal%20&amp;%20Democratic%20Services/Democratic%20Services/COMADMIN/HEWEB/MEETINGS/2017-2018/120318/finals/CIP%20PRIORITIES-HEWEBLAC%20120318%20FINAL.doc#Reportofthe


5

(1) That the allocation of the developers’ contributions of £116,100 
to the Wildern Swimming Pool roof and spectator seating 
project be approved;

(2) That the allocation of the developers’ contributions of £50,032 
towards the renovation and refurbishment of Hedge End Youth 
and Community Association (HEYCA) be approved;

(3) That the allocation of the developers’ contributions of £60,000 
to the extension of Dowd’s Farm Play Area be approved;

(4) That the allocation of the developer’s contribution of £168,134 
to the skate park at Hatch Farm and improvements to 
Barnsland Recreation Ground be approved;

(5) That the allocation of the developer’s contribution of £3,000 to 
the Botley Allotment Association be approved;

(6) That the revenue expenditure of £2,000 for the Park Sport 
programme in Hedge End, West End and Botley (HEWEB) be 
approved;

(7) That the revenue expenditure of £4,104 for nine flower towers 
within Hedge End, West End and Botley area be noted;
 

(8) That funding of £22,000 from reserves for car parking provision 
adjacent to numbers 65 – 70 Midlands Estate, West End be 
approved; and

(9) That funding of £10,000 from reserves for car parking provision 
adjacent to numbers 29 – 58 Ratcliffe Road, Hedge End, be 
approved.

65. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES

Development Management staff gave a short presentation on guidelines 
that had to be taken into account when determining planning applications; 
in particular the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account.  
This was set against the broader policy framework.

66. PLANNING APPLICATION - HIGHWOOD BARN, ITCHEN VALLEY 
COUNTRY PARK, ALLINGTON LANE, WEST END, SOUTHAMPTON, 
SO30 3HQ

The Committee considered the report of the Lead Specialist for Housing 
(Formerly Head of Development Management) (Agenda item 11) for the 
alterations and additions to fenestration in front and rear elevations; 
addition of vent to front roof elevation; and erection of covered shelter to 
the west of the main building.

5



6

The Committee was advised the following:

That the applicant was Eastleigh Borough Council 

That Environmental Health had confirmed no objection but recommended 
amendment to the wording of condition 5.

RESOLVED – 

That permission be GRANTED subject to:

(1) The recommended condition and reasons; and

(2) Amendment to Condition 5 to read: ‘Details of the proposed 
cooking extract system and means for minimising the emission 
of cooking odours shall be submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the Local Planning Authority, prior to installation.  
The cooking extract system and associated equipment shall be 
installed as per the approved details and thereafter retained. 
Reason: To minimise odour emissions.’

67. PLANNING APPLICATION - LAND BETWEEN ST JOHNS ROAD AND 
DODWELL LANE, HEDGE END

The Committee considered the report of the Lead Specialist for Housing 
(Formerly Head of Development Management) (Agenda item 12) for the 
construction of a link road between St Johns Road and Dodwell Lane 
(Phase 3 of planning permission O/13/73700).

The Committee was advised that the recommendation be delegated to the 
Housing and Development Lead Specialist, Chair and Vice Chair subject 
to outstanding information.

RESOLVED - 

That it be delegated to the Housing and Development Lead Specialist 
in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair to PERMIT subject to 
receipt of outstanding ecological and highways information, and the 
recommended conditions and reasons.

(NOTES: a) One member of the public spoke regarding the phasing of 
development. Although he understood that it needed to happen, he had 
encountered constant noise and disruption for a number of years. He 
asked that the construction traffic on the next phase be directed the 
opposite way, and that the opening of the road to the roundabout be left 
until last, to allow him and neighbour residents to have a reprieve of 
constant noise and dust; and b) and the agent spoke in support of the 
application). 

6



7

68. PLANNING APPEALS

The Legal Services Manager reported that the following appeal had 
lodged:

Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission for a two 
storey side extension at Holy Rose, Burnetts Lane, West End SO30 2HH 
(Ref: H/17/80976)

RESOLVED -

That the report be noted.

M5825

7



This page is intentionally left blank



HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

11 June 2018 

 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

   Report of the Local Area Manager  

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that this Committee: 

 
(1) approves the experimental traffic regulation order for The Pavilions 

development subject to consultation and approves the allocation of the 
developer’s contribution of £6,775 for this traffic regulation order; 

(2) approves the allocation of the developer’s contribution of £15,714 for traffic 
management proposals for The Pavilions development on match days at the 
Ageas Bowl; 

(3) approves the allocation of the developer’s contribution of £15,800 towards the 
West End boundary signs public art project; 

(4) approves the allocation of the developers’ contributions of £183,000 for the 
Itchen Valley Country Park phase 1 capital project; and 

(5) approves the allocation of the developer’s contribution of £13,548 to the 
Mums and Tots Cycling project. 

 

Summary 

The recommended funding will support projects which meet identified local needs. The 
projects will also contribute to the achievement of corporate priorities. 

Statutory Powers 
Section1 Localism Act 2011  

 

Strategic Implications 

1. The proposed projects contribute to the Council’s strategic priorities especially 
in relation to Enabling Healthier Lifestyles and Wellbeing by encouraging 
people to use country parks for informal physical activity and mental 
wellbeing. The majority of the projects have been identified in this 
Committee’s Community Investment Programme as priorities. All of the 

9

Agenda Item 7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

projects are based on local need and are therefore in accordance with the 
Local First project. 

The Pavilions – new housing development on the old 
Moorgreen Hospital site 

2. Residents of The Pavilions development have contacted local councillors and 
the developers, Barratts to express their increasing concerns about 
inconsiderate parking by members of the public.  

3. As a result, a site meeting was held between Eastleigh Borough Council and 
Barratts to discuss solutions to resolve these day to day issues which have 
happened during the year and not just within the cricket season. 

4. It has therefore been agreed that an experimental traffic regulation order 
would be the best course of action to deal with these day to day issues. In 
particular this would involve ensuring the junctions are safe and that 
obstructive parking is eliminated. If councillors approve this approach, it is 
proposed that a plan produced by Eastleigh Borough Council is approved by 
Barratts and that each resident receives a letter which outlines the proposals 
and that each resident is invited to comment. 

5. Councillors are therefore requested to approve this process and to approve 
the allocation of the following developer’s contribution:- 

TR   F/15/77247  BDW re Moorgreen hospital, Botley Rd, West End £6,774.84 6,774.84 

6. Due to the proximity of The Pavilions development to the Ageas Bowl, the 
developers, Barratts, have also agreed to contribute to funding for the traffic 
management arrangements for match days.  

7. After discussions with the Operations Director at the Ageas Bowl, it has been 
agreed that coning of the roads in The Pavilions is to be trialled for this 
season after which a review will determine whether this has been successful 
or whether other measures need to be undertaken. As the roads are 
unadopted, Barratts have given formal permission to cone the roads subject to 
consultation with the residents 

8. Councillors are therefore requested to approve the allocation of the following 
developer’s contribution for traffic management on high attendance match 
days: 

 DC   F/15/77247 BDW re: Moorgreen Hospital, Botley Rd, West End 
£15,714  

 Public Art 

9. A steering group has been established for the West End boundary signs 
project. The aim is to upgrade the signage in line with the vision for the West 
End Heritage Trail. 

10



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

10.  A public art statement and project outline have been agreed which means that 
public consultation can now commence. 

11. The estimated cost is £33,000 and councillors are reminded that the following 
developer’s contribution has already been allocated:- 

 DCC/11/69687Linden Homes, Land to the west of Romill Close, West End 

£17,355.26 

 
Formal allocation of the following developer’s contribution is now required as 
follows:- 

DC   F/16/78228  John Lewis re Hamilton House, Mansbridge Road, West End 
£15,800 – PART 

Itchen Valley Country Park Phase 1 Capital Project 

12.  On 12 October 2017, the Council’s Cabinet approved £285,000 to fund the 
first phase of the improvement project at Itchen Valley Country Park. Whilst 
scoping out the work, it became obvious that further improvements should be 
carried out in this phase by, for example, upgrading safety surfacing, 
enhancing the play offer and ensuring that the electricity supply is increased 
to provide capacity for the whole site rather than disrupt service again with 
additional building works at a later date. As a result, Cabinet approved a 
further £200,000 to complete all of the works. 

13. It was resolved by Cabinet that additional phase 1 works of £200,000 would 
be funded from developers’ contributions to be considered by this Committee 
in June 2018 with any shortfall being funded from the Council’s property 
maintenance reserves.  

14. Consequently councillors are asked to approve the allocation of the following 
anticipated developers’ contributions:-  

 DC  F/17/80651 – Foreman Homes Ltd re Land west of Waylands Place 
and north of Peewit Hill Close, Hedge End £115,000 – includes 
allocations for café extension; outdoor play and indoor play area 
associated works  

O/16/79600 – Land South of Maddoxford Lane, Boorley Green - £34,000 

O/16/78389 – Crows Nest Lane, Boorley Green - £34,000 

Itchen Valley Country Park – Mums and Tots cycling project 

15. The Council has received funding for a Mums and Tots cycling project. The 
cycle rides will be led by an instructor and the aim is to encourage mums with 
babies to get back into exercise and thereby increase the number of women 
cycling in the borough. The plan is to link with British Cycling’s Breeze 
programme. 

11



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

16. However upon inspection of the Park, it was clear that a section of the current 
cycling trail needed to be upgraded and slightly extended. This improvement 
will also benefit other cyclists and walkers and help to increase attendances. 

17.  Councillors of this Committee are therefore asked to approve the allocation of 
the following developer’s contribution for this upgrade. 

OS   F/08/63467 Autovue, 86 Chalk Hill, West End £13,548 

Financial Implications 

18.  All of the recommended funding streams can be afforded using this 
Committee’s developers’ contributions as stated. 

Risk Assessment 

19. There is a risk that some of the developers’ contributions may not be realised 
if the sites are not built out. This applies to the developers’ contributions which 
have been agreed for the Itchen Valley Country Park Phase 1 capital project. 
Also if funding is not allocated, there is a risk that some of the Council’s 
corporate and local priorities will not be met. All of the developers’ 
contributions comply with the Community Infrastructure Levy regulations. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

20. The Equality Act is not relevant to the majority of the decisions within this 
report with the exception of the Mums and Tots cycling project as most of the 
decisions do not relate to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of 
opportunity, or fostering good relations between different people. An Equality 
Impact Assessment has not been carried out at this stage but this will be 
undertaken as projects come to fruition. Many of the projects will benefit 
mums and young people by providing them with positive experiences. 

Conclusion 

21. The Committee is asked to approve the recommendations as outlined.   

JULIA BIRT 
LOCAL AREA MANAGER 

 
Date: 21 May 2018 
Contact Officer: Julia Birt 
Tel No: 023 8068 8437 
e-mail: Julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: None 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this report or an 
important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in the preparation of this 
report. This list does not include any published works or documents which would disclose exempt or 
confidential information. 

12



HEDGE END, WEST END & BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday 11 June 2018 

ANNUAL REVIEW 2017/18 

Report of the Local Area Manager 

 

RECOMMENDATION  

It is recommended that 
  
(1) Councillors consider the contents of this report. 
 

Summary 
 
This report highlights the main areas of work undertaken by the Hedge End, West End and 
Botley (HEWEB) Local Area Committee in 2017/18.  

It also includes a summary of the Chair’s annual review for 2017/18. This review was 
presented to the recent Annual Assemblies hosted by Hedge End Town Council, West 
End Parish Council and Botley Parish Council. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 

 

Strategic Implications 

1. The Committee’s work contributes to the achievement of the Council’s 
Corporate Plan and the corporate themes. The focus of the Committee 
meetings is the consideration of planning applications which totalled 10 in 
2017/18. The projects and service level agreements that are outlined in 
Appendix 1 also highlight the Committee’s contribution towards a Healthy 
Community, a Green Borough and a Prosperous Place. The strategic Local 
First project is also significant as local need is reflected in these projects and 
also within the grants that are given to local youth and community groups. 
Next year a local area plan will build upon these links to the Council’s 
strategies and the Local First project. 

Introduction 

2. This report provides an outline of the work undertaken by the Hedge End, 
West End and Botley Local Area Committee for the period 1 April 2017 – 31 
March 2018. The details can be found in Appendix 1. 

13

Agenda Item 8



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

3. A summary of the Chair’s review is in Appendix 2 and this was well received 
at the local annual assemblies. 

Financial Implications 

4. There are no financial implications associated with this report.  

Risk Assessment 

5. There are no identifiable risks. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

6. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
does not relate to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, 
or fostering good relations between different people.  An Equality Impact 
Assessment has not been carried out. 

Conclusion 

7. Councillors are invited to consider this report. 

JULIA BIRT 
Local Area Manager 

 
Date: 20 May 2018 
Contact Officer: Julia Birt 
Tel No: 023 8068 8437 
e-mail: Julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 2 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

None 

 

14



APPENDIX A 

 

 

HEWEB ANNUAL REVIEW 2017-18 

(REVIEW PERIOD 1 APRIL 2017 – 31 MARCH 2018) 

COMMITTEE MEETINGS 2017-18 

Number of Committee meetings convened 6 

Average attendance 28 
Public participation (speakers in Committee) 35 

Additional Members’ meetings  7 
  

AGENDA ANALYSIS  

Planning applications considered 10 
Other reports 13 

Exempt items 1 
  

REPORTS ADOPTED  
HEWEB Annual Review 2016/17  

Funding for Local Projects   

Financial Management x 4  
HEWEB Youth Partnership Plan 2017 - 2021  

Draft Botley Area Appraisal and Management Plan SPD  
Upgrades to Visitor Facilities at Itchen Valley Country Park  

Transfer of Little Owls Woodland Pre-School and Forest School to 
Youth Options 

 

Community Investment Programme Priorities in HEWEB  

Ageas Bowl Review 2017  
Community Grants 2018  

HEWEB Youth Grants  
  

REVENUE GRANTS AWARDED  
Revenue grants for local community projects 33 

Revenue value £9,590 

Revenue grants for Youth Projects 13 
Revenue value £3,980 

  
ANNUAL SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS (SLAs) – 
reviewed/renewed 

 

Hedge End Teenage Drop-In Centre £5,500 

15



APPENDIX A 

 

Youth work team leader - HEWEB £13,010 

Friday Night Football – SLA until 2019 £2,000 
Direct Services roundabout annual rolling maintenance SLA  £10,664  

Wildern Community Management Committee £51,345 
Berrywood Meadows – Direct Service maintenance SLA £1,900 

Parksport - summer holiday activities £2,000 

  
APPROVED NON ROUTINE PROJECTS  - £1,000+  

Dropped kerb adjacent to Linden Court/Wessex Road £2,500 
Feasibility car parking studies at Ratcliffe Road and the Midlands 
Estate 

£10,000 

Additional car parking provision in Ratcliffe Road £10,000 

Additional car parking provision in the Midlands Estate £22,000 

Defibrillator at Freegrounds Junior School £1,000 
Improvements to Shamblehurst Lane bus stops £12,500 

Moorgreen tennis court £10,000 
Allocation developer’s contributions for the public toilet project – 
West End 

£45,682 

Replacement picnic benches at Itchen Valley Country Park £6,000 

Plant towers £4,104 
Allocation of the developers; contributions towards the 
renovation and refurbishment of Hedge End Youth and 
Community Association (HEYCA) 

£50,032 

Allocation of developers’ contributions for swimming pool roof 
project at Wildern 

£116,100 

Feasibility car parking study for Waterbeech Drive £2,500 
Allocation of developers’ contributions for the car parking 
upgrade at Hilldene Community Centre 

£34,000 

Allocation of developer’s contributions for the Youthouse project £2,000 

Allocation of developers’ contributions for the public art at The 
Pavilions (old Moorgreen Hospital site) 

£29,000 

Allocation of developers’ contributions for the outdoor youth 
project at the Community Hub 

£1,322 

Allocation of developers’ contributions for the employment of a 
Community Development Worker (over 8 years*) 

£150,000* 

Allocation of developers’ contributions for the extension of 
Dowd’s Farm play area 

£60,000 

Tree works – Havendale/Ferndale/Bedford Close/Rectory Court £3,645 

Waste bin survey and implementation programme £10,000 

16



APPENDIX A 

 

Allocation of developer’s contribution towards public art project 
on the Bradbeers’ roundabout 

£6,812 

Allocation of the future developer’s contribution towards the 
public art project at the entrance of the Berry Theatre 

£30,600 

Allocation of the developer’s contribution for a new skate park at 
Hatch Farm and improvements to Barnsland Recreation Ground 

£168,134 

Storage project at St. James’ Church, West End £1,500 

Allocation of developer’s contribution for Botley Allotment 
Association’s fence project 

£3,000 

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY   
Capital expenditure – actual for 17/18 £145,634 

Revenue expenditure – actual for 17/18 £906,060 
Total Revenue reserve – (committed/uncommitted) £165,603 

 

17



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B 

 

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE CHAIR’S REVIEW 2017/18 

This is my second and final year as the Chair of the Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area 

Committee commonly known as HEWEB. 

It has been another busy year and the following are just a few highlights:- 

BOTLEY 

In Botley, the development of Boorley Park has dominated our activities this year with the building 

of 120 dwellings to-date and work is due to start on the community centre and pavilion. 

We have worked successfully in partnership with the Parish Council and the formation of the Boorley 

Green Working Group has been especially productive. Consultation with the local allotment 

association has been beneficial and their advice will be incorporated within the design of the 

allotments at Boorley Park. 

The appointment of Jacquie Rolls as the Community Development Worker for Boorley Park has also 

been significant. Jacquie has met with many of the new residents and representatives from the key 

local groups and organisations. Her remit is not only to develop this new community but also to 

integrate it within the remainder of Botley. 

Moving over the road to Boorley Gardens, this was a site that HEWEB refused planning permission 

for but this was over ruled at appeal. Similar to Boorley Park, we are now working in partnership 

with the Parish Council to ensure that the maximum benefit for the community is achieved.  

Both sites will have a primary school and it is proposed that the Woodhouse Lane site in Hedge End 

has a secondary school to be managed by the Wildern Multi Academy Trust. 

The Committee gave its full support to the Botley Bypass when the application was submitted. £10 

million pounds has already been secured towards this project as a result of a joint bid between the 

Borough Council and County Council. This is going to be a significant piece of infrastructure for 

Botley and one which should take the pressure off the village centre.  

I would also like to highlight another partnership success namely, Friday Night Football for 

youngsters with an average of 70 attending per session. The Parish Council provides the facilities 

free of charge and HEWEB has provided funding of £2,000 annually. This is the most popular Friday 

Night Football scheme in the Borough. 

HEDGE END 

We have supported Hedge End Youth and Community Association (HEYCA), firstly with funding for a 

condition survey of the building and subsequent £50,000 for renovation and refurbishment working 

with HETC. 

Also we have service level agreements in place with TADIC now the Young People’s Wellbeing 

Service and Wildern School supporting their Community Management Committee with advice and 

contribution to strategy. Funding for the pool roof and spectator seating project was announced at 

the March Committee. 

19



APPENDIX B 

 

We have undertaken feasibility studies in Ratcliffe Road and Waterbeech Drive to determine 

whether additional parking can be supplied.  

WEST END 

We have funded projects at Hilldene Community Centre, the Youthouse and St. James’ Church. 

In addition, public toilets have been installed near to the Parish Council and a play area in Mill 

Gardens is nearly complete. 

The largest project in West End has been at Itchen Valley Country Park and this has involved the 

redevelopment of the catering provision; a new indoor interactive play area and new outdoor play 

trail. The Country Park has undergone extensive tree work in partnership with the Forestry 

Commission and the Little Owls Kindergarten and Forest School have been outsourced to Youth 

Options. 

A feasibility study for part of the Midlands Estate was also funded by HEWEB and further funding has 

been approved to create more car parking spaces. 

Currently 2 public art schemes for the old Moorgreen Hospital site and the approaches to West End 

are underway and it is hoped that these can be delivered later this year. 

We also have a skate park for Hatch Farm in the pipeline with consultation due to start after May. 

The HEWEB Youth Partnership 

I would like to thank the Committee and Suzanne Watson who has now completed her 2 year stint 

as Chair. PC Jason Steel has now been elected as the new Chair. 

The partnership is a strong group and has worked on the theme of empowering young women this 

year. The new theme is anti - social behaviour and the Partnership will be discussing how to allocate 

resources more effectively. 

The involvement of young people in the allocation of the HEWEB youth grants is to be commended 

and Donna Love, the HEWEB Youth Leader manages this process. Her role is jointly funded by the 

Town Council and HEWEB. 

Across HEWEB 

 We have spent over £10,000 on litter bins; installed 9 flower towers – 3 in each shopping 

centre; installed over 30 speed limit reminders; agreed 10 traffic regulation orders (mainly 

double yellow lines) and 2 traffic studies. 

 We will again be supporting the Borough Council’s Parksport scheme for 8 -16 year olds over 

the Summer holidays. 

 We have allocated £4,000 for the HEWEB Youth grants and also look forward to receiving 

grant applications from community groups as we place great importance om the role of 

these groups within the community who are often reliant upon a small bank of volunteers. 

 

 

20



APPENDIX B 

 

Conclusion 

 

We will continue to improve the local area in partnership with key organisations such as the parish 

and town councils in addition to the youth partnership and voluntary groups.  

We look forward to receiving local people’s views and we welcome participation at the local area 

committee meetings  

 

Councillor Daniel Clarke 

   Chair of HEWEB LAC 

 

21



This page is intentionally left blank



HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday 11 June 2018 

DECLARATION OF WILDERN LOCAL NATURE RESERVE 

Report of the Local Area Manager 

 

Recommendation(s) 

It is recommended that   
 
(1) Delegated authority is given to the Hedge End Town Council (HETC) to 

declare Wildern Nature Park as a Local Nature Reserve (LNR) by Members. 

 

Summary 
 

 LNRs are places with wildlife or geological features that are of special interest 
locally 

 The power to declare such areas lies with the principal local authorities which 
includes Eastleigh Borough Council 

 The purpose of this report is to seek the approval from Members to delegate the 
powers to the HETC to declare Wildern Nature Park a LNR  

Statutory Powers 
 
Section 21 of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949 

 

Strategic Implications  

1. This report relates to the Corporate Plan objectives of improving Green 
Infrastructure and Enabling Health and Wellbeing; it also follows ‘Local First’ 
principles of supporting decision--making at a local level.  The designation 
detailed in the report will confirm robust and locally-controlled management 
arrangements for Wildern Nature Park and help promote it to more residents 
who will gain health and wellbeing benefits from walking and learning about 
the Park and its ecology. Current and any future new members of the Friends 
Group will also gain health and wellbeing benefits from volunteering in its 
management. 

23

Agenda Item 9



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Introduction 

2. There is a proposal to upgrade the Wildern Nature Park to a LNR.   

3. The land concerned is owned by HETC who would be fully responsible for the 
management and maintenance of the LNR. 

4. The proposal for an LNR was promoted by “Friends of Wildern Nature Park”.  
This is a community group comprising over 100 residents.  The intention is for 
the Town Council to draft an agreement with the Friends of Wildern Nature 
Park Group defining responsibilities for each party along with the aims and 
objectives of the management plan. 

5. Eastleigh Borough Council is required to delegate the power and authority to 
the Town Council in order for a LNR to be declared by the HETC.   

LNRs and the benefits of designation 

6. LNRs are for both people and wildlife.  They are places with wildlife or 
geological features that are of special interest locally.  They offer people 
special opportunities to study or learn about nature or simply to enjoy it. 

7. Declaring this area as a LNR will allow for priority habitats of purple moor 
grass, rush pasture and deciduous woodland in the nature park.  There could 
also be provision for a central walking track. 

8. The delegation of the designation power to HETC is a very clear signal to the 
local community of the Council’s commitment to nature conservation.  The 
LNR will also serve to protect the Wildern Priority Biodiversity Link as outlined 
in the Eastleigh Borough Council Biodiversity Plan.  

The Process of Designation 

9. LNR is a statutory designation.  The process is relatively straightforward and 
inexpensive.  The applying body must confirm: 

a) its legal interests in the land; 

b) it will manage the land with the conservation of nature as a priority 
concern. 

10. In order for HETC to declare the site as a LNR this power must be delegated 
to them by a principal local authority under s21 of National Parks and Access 
to the Countryside Act 1949. HETC are said to have already agreed in 
principle to make a similar resolution to accept this delegation should 
Members approve the recommendations in this report. 

11. The power to declare Local Nature Reserves was delegated by Cabinet to 
Area Committees at the Cabinet meeting on 6 September 2007 where it was 
agreed that “The process of declaration is relatively straight forward with 
proposals being approved by the relevant Local Area Committee”. 

24



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 
12. Once recommendations have been approved from both the Borough and the 

Town Council, EBC and HETC can then enter an agreement under s101 of 
the Local Government Act 1972 for the scheme of delegation of these powers 
to the Town Council.   

Financial Implications 

13. There are no financial implications arising from this decision. 

Risk Assessment 

14. There are no significant risks to the Council associated with the approval of 
the recommendation within this report. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

15. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
does not relate to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, 
or fostering good relations between different people.  An Equality Impact 
Assessment has not been carried out. 

Conclusion 

16. Members are asked to delegate the authority to HETC to give them the ability 
to declare Wildern Nature Park as a LNR  

 
JULIA BIRT 

LOCAL AREA MANAGER 
 

Date: 1 June 2018 
Contact Officer: Julia Birt 
Tel No: 023 8068 8437  
e-mail: Julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 0 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

None. 
 

25



This page is intentionally left blank



Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee – Monday 11 June 
2018 
 
Application Number: F/17/82076 
Case Officer: Mark Taylor 
Received Date: Wednesday 6 December 2017 
Site Address: SPARSHATTS OF BOTLEY LTD, BROAD OAK, BOTLEY, 

SOUTHAMPTON, SO30 2EU 
Applicant: Sparshatts Of Botley Ltd 
Proposal: Demolition of outbuilding and retention of retaining wall and 

boundary fence with associated alterations to parking 
arrangement (Retrospective) 
 

Recommendation: PERMIT subject to the following conditions: 
 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS 
 
1 
 
 

The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with 
the following plans numbered: DD173L01 RevB, 17/109/01 RevB, 17.109.02 
RevC, 17.109.03 RevB, 17.109.04, 17.109.05 and 17.109.06 RevA. 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
  
 

2 
 
 

The retaining wall that is the subject of this application shall be rendered with 
coping stones added (as per the approved drawing 17.109.04.) within a period 
of three calendar months from the date of this consent, to the satisfaction of the 
Local Planning Authority.  The wall shall thereafter be maintained and retained 
in that condition for the lifetime of the development.  
 
Reason: To protect the visual amenity of the area. 
  
 

3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4 

Within 1 month of the date of this decision, a parking layout demonstrating 28 
dedicated employee parking bays shall be submitted to the LPA for 
approval. The submitted layout shall also demonstrate how the employee 
parking bays will be marked out and identified on site. Within 1 month of parking 
layout being approved by the LPA, the 28 employee parking bays shall be 
clearly marked for the parking of staff vehicles in accordance with the approved 
details, and shall thereafter be permanently maintained as such.  
 
Within a period of three calendar months from the date of this consent the car 
parking area comprising 153 spaces as shown on the drawing DD173L01 shall 
have been made available, surfaced, signed, marked out, and retained in a 
condition to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.    
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
  
 

5 
 

Within 2 months of the date of this decision, a vehicle delivery strategy shall be 
submitted to the LPA for approval. Vehicle deliveries shall accord with the 

27

Agenda Item 11



 approved strategy and in any event shall not be delivered to the site or 
surrounding roads by car transporter with a gross vehicle weight of more than 
7.5 tonnes.  
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
  
 

6 
 
 

Within the first planting season from the date of this consent all hard & soft 
landscaping, tree planting and boundary treatment shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details and to the appropriate British Standard. 
For a period of 5 years after planting, any trees or plants which are removed, 
die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced as soon as is 
reasonably practicable with others of the same species, size and number as 
originally approved in the landscaping scheme.  The landscaping scheme shall 
be subsequently retained.  
 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the locality and to safeguard 
the amenities of neighbouring residents. 
  
 

7 
 
 

The gates off the vehicular access onto Brook Lane shall remain open from 15 
minutes before and until 15 minutes after the trading hours of the premises that 
the gates serve. 
  

Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
  

 

 
 
Report: 
 
This application has been referred to Committee at the request of Local 
Councillors.  
  
 

Description of Application 
 
1. Demolition of outbuilding and retention of retaining wall and boundary 

fence with associated alterations to parking arrangements 
(Retrospective). 

 
2. The application is retrospective.  It seeks to regularise the retaining 

boundary wall and fence above that has been erected on the south east 
boundary with the site adjacent to Brook Lane.   

 
3. The retaining wall measures from 1.2m to 1m above ground level from 

south west towards northeast.  Located behind the retaining wall are 
3m high fence panels. 

 

28



4. An existing access point onto Brook Lane has been re-instated, it has a 
width of approximately 6.5m.  There are two mesh gates approximately 
2.5m in height that are set back from the highway by more than 5m.  
These gates open outwards towards the highway. 

 
5. The mesh fencing in the south west corner of the site is approximately 

2.3m in height. 
 

6. The proposal also seeks to reconfigure the parking layout from that 
previously approved under planning consent F/14/74833.  The 
proposed parking provision has increased to 153 spaces (from 125). 

 
Site Area 

 
7. 0.53 Hectares 
 

Topography 
 
8. Ground levels fall from the south to north. 
 

Trees 
 
9. On boundary with stream along eastern boundary. 
  
 

Site Characteristics 
 
10. Car showroom and workshop, with car sales to the front and car 

parking to the rear. 
 

Character of Locality 
 
11. Within countryside and local gap. Residential properties to east and 

west. 
 

Relevant Planning History 
 
12. 

 REFERENCE DESCRIPTION DECISION 

Z/13618/002/00 Erection of single storey extension to 
Parts Department 

Permit 
1974 

Z/13618/003/00 Petrol pump canopy, amendment to 
approval WIR 21625/1 

Permit 
1974 

Z/13618/004/00 Extension to workshop Refuse 
1976 

Z/13618/005/00 Calor gas autoblend dispensing unit Permit 
1977 

29



 REFERENCE DESCRIPTION DECISION 

Z/13618/006/00 extension to parts department Permit 
1977 

Z/13618/007/00 First floor office extension Permit 
1978 

Z/13618/008/00 6000 gallon petrol storage tank Permit 
1978 

Z/13618/009/00 Erection of paint spraying booth Permit 
1985 

Z/13618/010/00 Installation of 1 no. 8,000 gallon 
underground tank and jet wash facility 

Refuse 
1988 

Z/13618/012/00 Alterations to existing building for 
internal car sales area, three valet bays 
and new workshop area, demolition of 
existing lean to paint booth, compressor 
house and garage units and relocation 
of car wash 

Permit 
1998 

A/13618/012/00 DISPLAY OF 5 FASCIA SIGNS, 1 
TOTEM SIGN, 2 POST MOUNTED 
SIGNS and 1 TWIN POLE SIGN  (ALL 
ILLUMINATED) 

Refuse 
1990 

A/13618/013/00 Display of internally illuminated fascia 
and pylon signs 

Consent 
1999 

A/13618/014/00 Display of 3no externally illuminated 
fascia signs, 1no internally illuminated 
projecting sign, 1no non-illuminated 
free standing sign with internally 
illuminated logo, 1no internally 
illuminated wall sign and 1no externally 
illuminated wall mounted sign 

Consent 
1999 

Z/13618/015/00 Amendments to planning permission 
13618/12 to retain existing car wash, 
spray booth and part of compressor 
house and to amend car parking layout 

Permit 
1999 

F/11/69029 Single storey side extension and 
elevational alterations to existing 
showroom entrance 

Permit 
2011 

A/12/70301 Display of 3no. Internally illuminated 
and 2no. Non-illuminated fascia signs 
and 2no. Illuminated and 7no. Non-
illuminated free standing signs 

Consent 
2012 

F/12/70444 Addition of cladding to existing Permit 

30



 REFERENCE DESCRIPTION DECISION 

showroom 2012 

A/14/74834 Display of 1no. Internally illuminated 
fascia sign, 1no. Non-illuminated 
vertical fascia sign, 1no. Part internally 
and part externally illuminated 
communication wall, 1no. Internally 
illuminated entrance statement sign, 
1no. Internally illuminated pylon sign 
and 1no. Internally illuminated 
directional sign. 

Consent 
2014 

F/14/74833 Erection of single storey rear extension, 
repositioning of front entrance & 
entrance steps & re-positioning of fire 
escape stairs on rear elevation, 
elevational alterations to include 
addition of metal cladding & alterations 
to car parking layout 

Permit 
2014 

F/17/79999 Retention of retaining wall and 
boundary fence with associated 
alterations to parking provision 
(amended description) 

Withdrawn 
2017 

 
Representations Received 
 
13. 10 Representations have been received on the proposal.  The 

representations received are summarised below: 
 

 Clarification of use of the parking area. 

 More landscaping to screen the site. 

 Ensure identification of staff parking areas.  

 Access to Brook Lane is dangerous and causes congestion.  

 Restrict use of Brook Lane access to avoid school traffic.  

 A 20mph limit on Brook Lane should be considered.  

 Welcome the rendering / coping of the wall  

 Suggest rising of ground levels for planting and to stop vehicles 
parking on this land.  

 Restrict use of rear access to between 7 am to 10 am and 4 pm 
to 6 pm on Mondays to Saturdays and not all on Sundays or 
Bank Holidays 

 Conditions recommended related to planting, timing of works to 
be completed, removal of Permitted Development Rights, 
restricted times to use the rear access and submission of a 
vehicle management plan. 

 Highway safety concerns in using the reinstated access to Brook 
Lane 

 Retrospective application therefore works are largely irreversible.  

31



 Cobbett Way being used for employee parking, drive vehicle 
parking and viewing of cars for sale.  

 Verges used for parking and damaged.  

 Tricklewood on Brook Lane not Broad Oak as shown on plans 

 Urbanising impact  

 Loss of view and development is visually unattractive 

 Loss of privacy due to car parking close to boundary and on 
higher ground.  

 A reduction in staff parking from 30no. spaces to 28no.  

 Staff parking not clearly marked out 

 Retrospective approval being sought for works on the highway.  

 Lack of information on the rear access which has been extended 
by 2m.  

 Lack of a transport assessment. 

 Not in a suitable location for this use due to car deliveries 
causing frequent congestion on Broad Oak, parking of cars 
blocking pedestrian access. Noise impact of overnight use of 
workshop cleaning and/or deliveries (04:00-05:00), and 
unattended intruder alarms 

 
Consultation Responses 

 
Hampshire County Council Highway Engineers 

 
14. No Objection in principle, subject to a condition being applied that the 

gated egress on Brook Lane shall only be used as an egress from the 
site and not an access. 
 
Botley Parish Council 
 

15. Residents of Cobbett Way have requested that the staff parking bays 
should be clearly identified on the ground to aid enforcement 
monitoring.   

 
16. Increased use of the entrance onto Brook Lane – It was requested that 

HCC Highways engineers should evaluate the safety of the sightline of 
the entrance for drivers on Brook Lane travelling northwards towards 
the A334 Botley High Street. The view of the entrance is obscured 
because the gates are set back from the road and there is no signage 
warning of a vehicle exit. 

 
Policy Context:  Designation Applicable to Site 

 

 Outside Built-up Area Boundary  

 Within Designated Countryside 

 Within Local Gap 

 In Close Proximity to an Established Residential Area 

 An Established Commercial site 

 Within Flood Zone 2 & 3. 

32



 
Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan 
Policies 

 

 1.CO (Development con countryside) 

 3.CO( Local gaps) 

 11.CO (non-residential buildings in countryside),  

 17.CO (alterations to commercial site in countryside)  

 36.ES (lighting),  

 41.ES & 42.ES (water courses),  

 43.ES (flooding),  

 44.ES (flood risk),  

 59.BE (Development criteria),  

 104.T. (Parking), 
 
17. The Submitted Local Plan comprises: the Revised Pre-submission 

Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, published February 2014; 
and the Schedule of Proposed Minor Changes, submitted to the 
Secretary of State in July 2014. 

 

 S9 – Countryside and countryside gaps; 

 DM1 – General criteria for new development; 

 DM16 – Extension and replacement of non-residential buildings in 
the countryside; 

 DM23 - General development criteria – transport; 

 DM24 – Parking; 
 
18. Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, July 2014, (the 

Submitted Local Plan) comprising:  
 
- Revised Pre-submission Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, 

published February 2014; and  
- Schedule of Proposed Minor Changes, submitted to the Secretary 

of State in July 2014’  
 

Supplementary Planning Documents 
 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places (November 
2011) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Parking Standards 
(January 2009) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Environmentally Sustainable 
Development (March 2009) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Planning Obligations (July 
2008, updated 2010) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Affordable Housing (July 2009) 
 

National Planning Policy Framework 
 

33



19. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that 
applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance 
with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. Para 14 sets out a general presumption in favour of 
sustainable development and states that development proposals which 
accord with the development plan should be approved without delay. 
Where the development plan is absent, silent, or relevant policies are 
out-of-date planning permission should be granted unless the adverse 
impacts of the development would outweigh the benefits; or specific 
policies in the Framework indicate development should be restricted 
(paragraph 14). Local plan policies that do not accord with the NPPF 
are now deemed to be “out-of-date”. The NPPF requires that due 
weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans according 
to their degree of consistency with the NPPF. In other words the closer 
the policies in the plan accord to the policies in the Framework, the 
greater the weight that may be given. 

 
National Planning Practice Guidance  

 
20. Where material, this guidance should be afforded weight in the 

consideration of planning applications.  
 

Policy Commentary 
 
21. The above policies and guidance combine to form the criteria against 

which this application will be assessed with particular regard to 
Highway safety and the impact on the countryside setting. 

 
Comment on Consultation Responses and Representations 
Received 

 
22. The matters for consideration are restricted to the revised parking 

layout, access, landscaping and retention of the wall and fence only. 
Matters outside of these considerations such as the hours of operation 
and noise and disturbance generating from the existing premises itself, 
and the removal of permitted rights for this, cannot be taken into 
account as they do not directly relate to the specific proposal the 
subject of this application.  
 

23. With regard to the highway implications of the development, Hampshire 
County Council has been consulted as part of the application and their 
comments noted. 
 

24. The other matters raised form part of the considerations of the 
application below. 

 
Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative 
Background 

 

34



25.   Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 
states:- 

 "If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination 
must be made in accordance with the plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise." 

 
 Principle of Development 
 
26. The site falls within land designated as countryside, sitting outside the 

urban edge. Policy 1.CO seeks to protect the countryside areas within 
the Borough with there being a general presumption against 
development. The site is also in a Local Gap, with Policy 3.CO being of 
relevance. Local Gaps are designated in order to protect the identity of 
smaller settlements at risk of coalescence with other settlements. 

 
Retrospective Planning Application 

 
27. The National Planning Policy Framework says that enforcement action 

is discretionary, and that local planning authorities should act 
proportionately in responding to suspected breaches of planning 
control. Section 73A of the Town and County Planning Act 1990 
specifically provides that a granting of planning permission may relate 
to development carried out before the date of the application (para 6). 
Furthermore, an application cannot be refused on grounds that it is 
retrospective. When considering the development regard has to be had 
to Government guidance and the policies contained within the 
Development Plan. 

 
Countryside and Local Gap 

 
28. The site is an established commercial use within the countryside and 

local gap. Saved Policy 1.CO resists development within the 
countryside.  However saved policy 17.CO does permit the extension of 
commercial uses provided that: 

 
i) it is for a use, and of a design, scale and lay-out which is in 

keeping with its surroundings and it is to be constructed in 
appropriate materials; and  

ii) it would not result in a significant increase in traffic generation 
associated with the site. 

 
29. The land within the red line of the application site forms an established 

and lawful commercial use.  The area in which the fence is located had 
previously been used for the parking of motor vehicles although not in 
such close proximity to the sites boundary and with substantial 
screening provided by the hedge and shrubs that adjoined Brook Lane. 

 

35



30.  The erected boundary treatments have a greater physical and visual 
impact than the hedge and shrubs they replace.  When initially erected 
the checkerboard effect of the retaining wall and mesh fence presented 
a very urban form in this previously ‘green’ location. 

 
31. Acknowledging the impact this has on the countryside and the setting of 

the area a number of alterations have been made to soften the impact 
of the proposal.  It is proposed to improve the quality of the finish of the 
retaining wall through the use of render and a more attractive coping 
stone on top. 

 
32. The materials used in the boundary wall reflect the facing materials 

used in a number of the nearby residential boundary treatments that 
abut Brook Lane. Landscaping of the area between the wall and 
highway and this is considered later in this report. 
 

33. The use of the site will remain unchanged and the proposal is also not 
expected to result in any additional trips to and from the site. 

 
Landscaping 

 
34. Saved Policy 18.CO seeks to preserve the intrinsic landscape character 

of the countryside.  The vegetation between the fence and the highway 
has been removed. This vegetation did not benefit from any formal 
protection and could have been removed at any time without the need 
for express planning consent. 
 

35. However, the landscaping of the area between the wall and fence 
adjacent to Brook Lane is also proposed as part of the current 
application.  This planting includes three types of tree Ilex Aquifolium 
(Common Holly), Acer Campestre (Field maple), Prunus Avium (Wild 
cherry).  The trees, as planted, will have a height of approximately 60-
80cm providing immediate screening but have the potential to grow up 
to 12m in height to provide longer term and more substantive screening 
of the site, cars and security fencing. 

 
36. The planting area also includes a mix of shrub planting (height of 

approximately 60-80cm) climbers and herbaceous plants and grasses.  
The proposed planting cannot be to the depth of the previous 
vegetation and in its initial stages the proposed planting would only 
provide some screening of the retaining wall.  However subject to an 
appropriate condition that secures the landscaping, its future 
maintenance and its retention, the mature landscaping would 
significantly reduce the level and impact of the urban form in the 
countryside. 
 

Local Gap 
 

36



37. Saved policy 3.CO seeks to protect the local gap between settlements.  
It advises planning permission will only be permitted for appropriate 
development in a local gap, if:  

(i) it cannot be acceptably located elsewhere; and  
(ii) it would not diminish the gap, physically or visually.   

 
38. The proposed fence, wall and parking area serve the existing use.  The 

application site is a small extension to the hard form of the existing 
showroom site and is located between the residential properties to 
Cobbettt Way and Brook Lane. Taking account of these factors, the 
proposal is not considered to materially diminish the local gap either 
physically or visually. 

 
Revised Access 
 

39. The proposal includes a significant revision to the access onto Brook 
Lane.  The design and access statement advises (Page 17) that the 
revised access is to facilitate access for staff when required.  The new 
access is set further back from the highway with dedicated visibility 
splays and hard surfacing.  The previous access could be reinstated at 
any time and this fall back position is a material consideration.   

 
40. Hampshire County Council’s highway engineers have suggested a 

condition that restricts the gated egress on Brook Lane stating that it 
should be only be used as an egress from the site and not an access.  
HCC has advised ‘If the gate were to be used as an access, then this 
could result in vehicles stopping on the highway waiting for the gates to 
be opened which would not be welcomed for highway safety reasons. If 
access is required at this point, then gates will need to be updated to be 
located a minimum of 6.0m into site, and with inward opening gates.’ 
 

41. Such a condition is not be considered to be readily enforceable due to 
the difficulties with being able to monitoring such an arrangement at all 
times and therefore, it would not be appropriate to impose such a 
condition. Additionally, it is a material consideration that no such 
condition was applied to the original access that had a similar 
relationship to the highway.   

 
42. It is also important to note that the proposal seeks to encourage staff to 

park on site in order to address the concern raised by occupiers of 
neighbouring properties regarding employees parking within 
surrounding residential streets. As such, and in order to encourage the 
parking to be utilised whilst preventing vehicles stopping on the 
highway while the gates are opened, a condition is proposed that 
requires the gates to be kept open during the premises’ opening hours 
to allow vehicular access into the site. 
 

Deliveries 
 

37



43. The supporting documentation implies that deliveries of vehicles will be 
in small numbers.  Previous consents have included a condition that 
prevents the delivery of vehicles by transporter.   
 

44. Such a condition however would not prevent vehicles being delivered 
by transporter near to the site on neighbouring roads. As such, to 
ensure that deliveries are made to the premises in an appropriate 
manor, a condition requiring the submission of a vehicle delivery 
strategy to be approved by the Local Planning Authority shall be 
attached to the planning consent. 
 

Parking 
 
45. The revised scheme makes provision for the parking of employee 

vehicles on site to ensure that there is sufficient parking provision for 
staff. 

 
46.  A total of 28 staff parking bays are proposed as part of the revised 

parking layout. The design and access statement indicates that these 
are located to the south west of the workshop, however, in order to be 
sure where the dedicated spaces will be on the site a condition will be 
imposed requiring the submission of a plan clearly identifying the 28 
employee spaces for approval by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
47. Concern has been raised by the public that this is a shortfall on the 

previous provision and does not provide sufficient spaces for staffing 
levels. However, given it is unlikely that all staff members will be in 
attendance at the same time, that there is the opportunity to access the 
site by alternatives to the motor car, and that no objection to this 
provision has been raised by Hampshire County Councils Highway 
Engineers, the proposed level of provision is considered to be 
acceptable.   

 
Highway Safety 

 
48. No objection has been raised regarding the proposal from Hampshire 

County Council’s Highway Engineers.  It is noted that there is an access 
to a school further north east along Brook Lane, however, the road 
narrows between the access to the application site and the school 
highway access to reduce vehicle speeds.  Should Hampshire County 
Highways wish the speed limit to be lowered within this area of Brook 
Lane if this was deemed to be necessary in future, it is within their 
powers to do so. 

 
Other material considerations 

 
49. Also of relevance is the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 

2029, July 2014.  While not yet adopted it does carry weight by virtue of 
being intended as the current local plan’s replacement.  With regards to 

38



this application, the new policies essentially echo those of the current 
plan and are not considered to affect the recommendation put forward. 

 
Conclusion 

 
50. The application accords with the saved policies referenced above and 

is therefore recommended for approval subject to conditions.  
 
 

39



 

 

40



APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2018- 19 

 

Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee  
 

Name of Organisation: HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY YOUTH 
PARTNERSHIP 

2017-18 

Representative(s): 

Councillor D Pretty 

Contact Officer: Julia Birt 

Committee: Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee  

Terms of reference  

and objectives of 

organisation: 

To co-ordinate youth provision across the local area 

Key areas of interest and 

topical Issues for the 

organisation: 

Young people 

No of meetings per year: 

 
6 

Usual time of meeting(s): 
 
Tuesdays, (6.30 pm for AGM only) 
Midday meetings for consideration 

Normal amount of 

notice given of 

meeting(s): 
 

Desired skills, qualities, 

knowledge or experience 

Members should have: 

A working knowledge of the HEWEB Youth Development Plan 
Background knowledge of youth services, youth club provision 
and issues affecting young people aged 8 – 25. 
Plan being revised and meetings will take on themes. 

Details of any training 

provided: 

None 

Details of anticipated 

workload: 

eg will member attend 

meeting only or be 

involved in other work?  

Meetings only 

Name and address of 

contact for organisation: 

Julia Birt   
Local Area Manager 

41

Agenda Item 13



APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2018-19 

 

Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee 
 

Name of Organisation: NORTH WHITELEY DEVELOPMENT FORUM 

2017-18 

Representative(s): 

Cllr D Clarke 

Contact Officer:  

Committee: Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee 

Terms of reference  

and objectives of 

organisation: 

Overview of emerging housing development proposal for North 
Whiteley. Ability to influence the master plan and mitigate 
impacts on Eastleigh Borough. 

Key areas of interest and 

topical Issues for the 

organisation: 

Strategic planning of housing development. 
Awareness of planning proposals in the HEWEB area. 
The early provision of a Botley Bypass in the next Plan period. 

No of meetings per year: 

 
4 (approx quarterly) plus 
public exhibitions and 
consultations 

Usual time of meeting(s): 
 
Tuesdays at 6pm, at the Solent Hotel, 
 Whiteley 

Normal amount of 

notice given of 

meeting(s): 
 
One month 

Desired skills, qualities, 

knowledge or experience 

Members should have: 

Sound knowledge of proposed strategic housing 
developments. 
Appreciation of key proposals in the draft Eastleigh Local Plan 
2011-2029. 
 

Details of any training 

provided: 

Not applicable.  Although regular briefings will be provided by 
key officers and developers representatives 

Details of anticipated 

workload: 

eg will member attend 

meeting only or be 

involved in other work?  

Attendance at Forum meetings and any associated 
consultation events. 
Reading of all papers and draft documents associated with 
the Forum.  
Providing feedback to other Members and officers as 
required. 

Name and address of 

contact for organisation: 

Mr D Blakemore  01962 848217 
Winchester City Council 
City Offices 
Colebrook Street 
WINCHESTER   SO23 9LJ 
 

42



APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2018-19 

 

Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee  
 

Name of Organisation: WILDERN COMMUNITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

2017-18 

Representative(s): 

Cllr C Garton / Cllr D Clarke 

Contact Officer: Julia Birt 

Committee: Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee  

Terms of reference  

and objectives of 

organisation: 

Oversee Community Use Programme.  Develop and 
implement an Annual Service Plan.  Support extension of 
community activities on campus. 

Key areas of interest and 

topical Issues for the 

organisation: 

Development and sustainability of the leisure centre, D.@rt 
Centre and the Berry Theatre.  

No of meetings per year: 

 
4 maximum 

Usual time of meeting(s): 
 
Evenings - 6.00 pm - 8.00 pm 

Normal amount of 

notice given of 

meeting(s): 
 
Annual programme 

Desired skills, qualities, 

knowledge or experience 

Members should have: 

Interest in: Arts and/or sports development and community 
education. Particular interest in community-based theatres and 
film an advantage. 

Details of any training 

provided: 

Training and support can be given according to present level 
of knowledge. 

Details of anticipated 

workload: 

eg will member attend 

meeting only or be 

involved in other work?  

Minimum requirement is attendance at meetings and 
background reading of papers.  Occasional attendance at 
events and official openings desirable.   

Name and address of 

contact for organisation: 

Julia Birt   
Local Area Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

43

mailto:D.@rt


 

APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2018-19 

 

Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee  
 

Name of Organisation: HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY BUSINESS 
COMMUNITY GROUP 

2017-18 

Representative(s): 

Cllr D Pretty 

Contact Officer: Julia Birt 

Committee: Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee  

Terms of reference  

and objectives of 

organisation: 

Currently under discussion but the Group will provide the 
collective business voice for the HEWEB area. It will become a 
formal consultee on local issues. 
The first objective this year is to grow the Group to reflect the 
diverse nature of local businesses. 

Key areas of interest and 

topical Issues for the 

organisation: 

These issues have been identified by the Group:- 
Planning (policy and developments) 
Transport 
Traffic 
Communications including social media 
Recycling 
Training (skills) 

No of meetings per year: 

 
Every 6-8 weeks 

Usual time of meeting(s): 
 
Mondays 7.45 - 9.30am 

Normal amount of 

notice given of 

meeting(s): 
One month 

Desired skills, qualities, 

knowledge or experience 

Members should have: 

Experience of working in the private, public or voluntary 
sector is desirable. 

Details of any training 

provided: 

None 

Details of anticipated 

workload: 

eg will member attend 

meeting only or be 

involved in other work?  

Meetings only 

Name and address of 

contact for organisation: 

Julia Birt   
Local Area Manager 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44



APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2018-19 

 

Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee  
 

Name of Organisation: BOORLEY GREEN WORKING GROUP 

2017-18 

Representative(s): 

Cllr D Clarke / Cllr R Kyrle 

Contact Officer: Julia Birt 

Committee: Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee  

Terms of reference  

and objectives of 

organisation: 

Working in partnership with representatives from Botley Parish 
Council, the Developers’ consortium and Eastleigh Borough 
Council officers to maximise the community benefit from the 
Boorley Park development and to ensure its integration into the 
wider Botley area. 

Key areas of interest and 

topical Issues for the 

organisation: 

These issues have been identified by the Group:- 
Design and delivery schedules for housing and community 
facilities 
Appointment of a Neighbourhood Community Worker 
Future management and Section 106 payments for the 
development 

No of meetings per year: 

 
Every 6 – 8 weeks 

Usual time of meeting(s): 
 
Mondays 6.30 – 8.30pm 

Normal amount of 

notice given of 

meeting(s): 
One month 

Desired skills, qualities, 

knowledge or experience 

Members should have: 

Experience of working in the private, public or voluntary 
sector is desirable. 

Details of any training 

provided: 

None 

Details of anticipated 

workload: 

eg will member attend 

meeting only or be 

involved in other work?  

Meetings only 

Name and address of 

contact for organisation: 

Julia Birt   
Local Area Manager 

 

 
 

45



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Financial Management
	8 Annual Review 2017/18
	Annual Review Appendix A
	Annual Review Appendix B

	9 Wildern Local Nature Reserve
	11 Planning Application - Sparshatts of Botley Ltd, Broad Oak, Botley
	13 Appointments to Outside Bodies

